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AUSTRALIAN INDUSTRIAL REGISTRY 

Ref: FR2004/232-[128V-PQLD] 

Mr Jorgen Gullestrup 
Branch Secretary 

Queensland Divisional Branch 
CEPU Plumbing Division 
PO BOX3596 
SO UTI-I BRISBANE QLD 410 I 

Dear Mr Gullestrup 

level 8, Terrace Towers 
so William Street, East Sydney, NSW 2011 

Telephone: (02) 8374 6666 
Fax: (02) 9380 6990 

Re: Communications, Electrical, Electronic, Energy, Information, Postal, Plumbing and Allied 
Services Union of Australia- Plumbing Division- Queensland Divisional Branch 

Financial Reporting Obligations under Workplace Relations Act 1996 

This is a courtesy letter to remind you of the financial reporting obligations of the abovenamed body 
under the Workplace Relations Act 1996 ('the Act') for the financial year ended 3 I March, 2004. 

While the accounting, auditing and reporting obligations have changed with the introduction of the 
Registration and Accountability of Organisations Schedule (the RAO Schedule) which generally came 
into operation on I 2 May 2003, Part IX, Division II of the Act continues to apply in relation to a 
financial year of an organisation that ends on 31 March, 2004. The corresponding obligations set out in 
the RAO Schedule apply to each financial year of an organisation that starts on or after I July 2003. 

Now that the tinancial year for 31 March, 2004 has ended, it is timely that you put in train the various 
steps of the financial reporting requirements. To assist you with this process I have enclosed for your 
information a notice summarising these requirements including the time-scales prescribed by the 
legislation. 

Please note that a branch of an organisation may be exempted from the accounting, auditing and 
reporting obligations in respect of a financial year by satisfying a Registrar that the branch did not have 
any tlnancial affairs during the financial year. An application under subsection 271 A( I) of the Act must 
be made within 90 clays (unless extended by a Registrar) after the end of the financial year. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me on (02) 8374 6618 if you wish to discuss the financial reporting 
requirements, especially if you anticipate any difficulty in meeting any step in the time-scales prescribed. 

Yours sincerely 

Belinda Penna 

E-mai I: bel incla.penna@air.gov .au 
2 April, 2004 



CEPU PWMBING DMSION 
QUEENSlAND BRANCH 

JG:db 

CEPU PLUMBING DIVISION 

19 July, 2004. 

The Industrial Registrar's Office 
P.O. Box 5795 
CENTRAL PLAZA BRISBANE 4001. 

Dear Sir, 

QUEENSLAND BRANCH 
A.B.N. 51 918 867 235 

JORGEN GULLESTRUP 
Branch Secretary 

Postal Address 
PO Box 3596, South Brisbane 4101 

41 Peel St, South Brisbane 4101 

Ph: 07 3844 8433 
Fax: 07 3844 8233 

Please find enclosed a copy of the 2003/2004 Balance Sheet of the above 
mentioned Union, which has been prepared in accordance with the relevant 
Federal Legislation and presented to a Committee Meeting on the 25 May, 
2004 and forwarded to all members via Journal on 9 June, 2004 and has 
been presented to the Annual General Meeting on the 29 June, 2004 which 
adopted the Balance Sheet.. 

Also, we advise that as at 31 March, 2004 the membership of the Union was 
2575. 

We would appreciate your acknowledgment of receipt of this Balance Sheet at 
your earliest convenience. 

Yours faithfully, 

t L--
' GEN GULLESTRUP 
ATE SECRETARY. 

Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal Plumbing and Allied Services Union of Australia. 
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COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

STATEMENT OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE 
For The Year Ended 31 March 2004 

INCOME 

INCOME FROM MEMBERS 

Contributions 
Branch Levy 
Entrance Fees 
Defence Levy 

TOTAL INCOME FROM MEMBERS 

OTHER INCOME 

Interest Received 
Meeting Attendance 
Sundry Income 
Funeral Benefits Received 
Funeral Benefits Paid 
Training Grant Income 
Training Grant Expenses 
Profitf(Loss) on Sale of Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 

TOTAL INCOME 

EXPENDITURE 
Affiliations 
Federal Office Contributions 
Industrial Campaign Expenses 
Industrial Support 
Wages - Officials 
Wages- Staff 
BERT 
Superannuation - Officials 
Superannuation- Staff 
Workcover 
Holiday Pay Provided - Officials 
Holiday Pay Provided - Staff 
Long Service Leave & Retirement Allowance - Officials 
Long Service Leave & Retirement Allowance- Staff 
Audit Fees 
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2004 
$ 

519 469 
137 262 

3 282 
2 150 

662 163 

6 368 
35 584 

6 672 
49 000 

(49 000) 
109 896 
(63 399) 

(5 272) 

89849 

752 012 

14 021 
51 944 

3 880 
11 923 

234 790 
118 757 

25 281 
10 560 

1 315 
3 441 
(301) 

15 908 
25 578 
14 405 

2003 
$ 

527 107 
50474 

3 920 
25 699 

607 200 

4 044 
30 724 
49 228 
19 000 

(19 000) 
216 981 

(117717) 
(450) 

182 810 

790 010 

16 888 
55143 

3 760 

250 024 
112 960 

2 915 
29 092 
10 543 

1 506 
302 

1 226 
10 009 

2 457 
7 355 



COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

STATEMENT OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE 
For The Year Ended 31 March 2004 

2004 2003 
$ $ 

EXPENDITURE (Cont'd) 
Donations 1 000 2 775 
Legal Fees 7 155 2 601 
Motor Vehicle Running Expenses 21 567 21 534 
Motor Vehicle Fringe Benefits Tax 4 273 2 304 
Motor Vehicle Depreciation 14 001 14 568 
Promotions 5476 5 808 
Tolls, Parking, Taxis 1 812 2 859 
Telephone 28 517 28 266 
Administration Expenses: 

Printing & Stationery 17 162 19 708 
Newsletter 6 553 36 667 
Postage 10 595 10 068 
Cleaning 3 600 1 860 
Photocopying 1 322 1 206 
Insurance 7 732 6 673 
Amenities 2 025 1 664 
Uniforms 1 616 1 570 
Equipment Mainten;3nce 8 271 7 435 
Building Maintenance 12184 11 673 
Computer Expenses 8 217 15 517 
Staff Training 829 3 170 

Organisers Expenses 
Overnight Allowance 3 605 2431 
Airfares and Accommodation 5 557 6 259 

Meetings Expenses 8 410 8 749 
Subscriptions 1 362 2 094 
Bank Charges 6 925 6 810 
Lodgement Fees 33 
Interest Paid 2 029 5 911 
Sundry Expenses 9 977 3 609 
Depreciation - Furniture & Equipment 2 953 2 710 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 736 260 740 679 

NET SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 15 752 49 331 
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,~ COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31 March 2004 

NOTES 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash on Hand 
Cash at Bank 3 
Other Debtors 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Plant & Equipment 4 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Federal Office- Contributions 
Other Creditors and Accrued Expenses 
Provision for Holiday Pay 
Provision for Long Service Leave & Retiring Allowance 

56 528 
Loan from CEPU Other Divisions 5 
Unexpended Grant Income 
Members Wages Collected 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Loan from CEPU Other Divisions 5 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

ACCUMULATED FUNDS 6 
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2004 2003 
$ $ 

1 100 600 
292 026 292 568 

8 123 9 106 

301 249 302 274 

534 018 527 897 

835 267 830 171 

157 602 234 757 
70 061 42 360 
23 441 20 301 

98 014 

10 400 10 400 
2 543 
2 746 2 746 

364 807 367 092 

5 763 14134 

370 570 381 226 

464697 448 945 

464697 448 945 



COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31 March 2004 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements are a special purpose financial report prepared in order to 
satisfy the accounts preparation requirements of the Workplace Relations Act 1996. 
The Committee of Management has determined that the Union is not a reporting 
entity. The statements are prepared on an accruals basis. In accordance with 
generally accepted principles of organization, membership contributions are 
accounted for on a cash receipt basis. Otherwise, the accounts are prepared under 
the historical cost convention. 

The statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Workplace Relations Act 1996 and the following applicable Accounting Standards 
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements: 

AASB 1025 Application of Reporting Entity Concept and Other Amendments 

No other applicable Accounting Standards or other mandatory professional reporting 
requirements have been applied. 

In particular: 

(a) The accounts have not been adjusted to record either changes in the general 
purchasing power of the dollar or in the price of specific assets other than as 
disclosed in these financial statements. 

(b) Plant and equipment are included at cost. All assets are depreciated over their 
useful lives. The Unions Peel Street property is valued in accordance with an 
independent valuation carried out on 13 February 2002. No depreciation has 
been charged against the Peel Street property during the year ended 31 March 
2004. 

(c) No provision for income tax is necessary as Trade Unions are exempt from 
income tax under Section 50-15 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(d) Long service leave and retiring allowance accrued to officials up to 30 June 
1999 is taken up in the books of the Federal Office. Long service leave and 
retiring allowance accrued to officials from 1 July 1999 is taken up in the books 
of the Queensland Branch. 

(e) As a sponsor of the BERT Fund the Union may receive distributions of income 
from the Fund. In accordance with the Sponsors Deed all distributions must be 
loaned back to the Fund until they are expended on welfare or related 
assistance as agreed upon by the Sponsors. The distributions from the Fund 
and welfare assistance paid from the loan account are not shown as income or 
expenditure of the Union as the Union has no control over the funds nor are the 
funds available for Union purposes. 
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\---/ COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31 March 2004 

2. INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED TO MEMBERS OR REGISTRAR 

In accordance with the requirements of the Workplace Relations Act 1996, the 
attention of members is drawn to the provisions of Sub-Sections (1 ), (2) and (3) of 
Section 274 which reads as follows: 

(1) A members of an organization, or a Registrar, may apply to the organization 
for specified prescribed information in relation to the organization. 

(2) An organization shall, on application made under Sub-Section (1) by a 
member of an organization of a Registrar, make the specified information 
available to the members or Registrar in such manner, and within such time, 
as is prescribed. 

(3) A Registrar may only make an application under Sub-Section (1) at the 
request of a member of the organization concerned, and the Registrar shall 
provide to a member information received because of an application made at 
the request of the member. 

3. CASH AT BANK 

2004 2003 
$ $ 

General Fund Cheque Account 98 779 119 145 
Training Cheque Accounts 17 544 
Members Wages Account 2 856 2 850 
General Investment Cash Mgt Call Account 22 043 
Members Equity Account 76 158 
Term Deposit 114 233 130 986 

292 026 292 568 
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COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31 March 2004 

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Peel Street Property- at independent valuation 
Office Equipment at cost 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Motor Vehicles at cost 

Accumulated Depreciation 

5. LOAN FROM CEPU OTHER DIVISIONS 

Current liability 
Non-current liability 

6. ACCUMULATED FUNDS 

Accumulated Funds at Start of Year 
Surplus/(Deficit) For Year 
Property Revaluation Reserve 

Accumulated Funds at End of Year 
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2004 2003 
$ $ 

461 421 
88 631 

(77111) 
96 249 

(35 172) 

534 018 

10 400 
5 763 

16163 

292 879 
15 752 

156 066 

464697 

461 421 
88 646 

(76 346) 
84100 

(29 924) 

527 897 

10 400 
14134 

24534 

243 548 
49 331 

156 066 

448 945 



COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

ACCOUNTING OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE 

I, Jorgen Gullestrup, being the Officer responsible for keeping the accounting records 
of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal Plumbing and 
Allied Serviced Union of Australia, certify that as at 31 March 2004, the number of 
members of the Union was 2,575. 

In my opinion: 

(i) The attached accounts show a true and fair view of the financial affairs of the 
Union as at 31 March 2004; 

(ii) A record has been kept of all moneys paid by, or collected from, members and 
all moneys so paid or collected have been credited to the bank account to 
which those moneys are to be credited, in accordance with the rules of the 
Union; 

(iii) Before any expenditure was incurred by the Union, approval of the incurring of 
the expenditure was obtained in accordance with the rules of the Union; 

(iv) With regards to funds of the Union raised by compulsory levies or voluntary 
contributions from members, or funds other than the General Fund operated in 
accordance with the rules, no payments were made out of any such fund for 
purposes other than those for which the fund was operated; 

(v) No loans or other financial benefits, other than remuneration in respect of their 
full time employment with the Union, were made to persons holding office in 
the Union; and 

(vi) The register of members of the Union was maintained in accordance with the 
Workplace Relations Act, 1996. 

"'?:,C> - 6 - ' 2004 
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COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT'S CERTIFICATE 

We, Jorgen Gullestrup and Trevor Seehusen being two members of the committee of 
management of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal 
Plumbing and Allied Serviced Union of Australia, do state on behalf of the committee, 
and in accordance with a resolution passed by the committee that-

(i) In the opinion of the Committee of Management, the attached accounts show a 
true and fair view of the financial affairs of the Union as at 31 March, 2004; 

(ii) In the opinion of the Committee of Management, meetings of the Committee 
were held during the year ended 31 March 2004, in accordance with the Rules 
of the Union; 

(iii) To the knowledge of any members of the Committee, there have been no 
instances where records of the Union or other documents (not being documents 
containing information made available to a member of the Union under sub­
section 274 (2) of the Workplace Relations Act, 1996) or copies of those records 
or documents, or copies of the rules of the Union have not been furnished, or 
made available, to members in accordance with the requirements of the 
Workplace Relations Act, 1996, the Regulations thereto or the rules of the 
Union; and 

(iv) The Union has complied with sub-section 279 (1) and (6) of the Act in relation to 
the financial accounts in respect of the year ended 31 March 2003 and of the 
Auditors' Report thereon. 

J gen Gullestrup 

'2004 

Trevor Seehusen 
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COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION POSTAL 
PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT 

To the members of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal 
Plumbing and Allied Serviced Union of Australia. 

Scope 
We have audited the financial accounts of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy 
Information Postal Plumbing and Allied Serviced Union of Australia for the year ended 31 
March 2004 as set out on pages 1 to 8. The Union's Committee of Management and 
Accounting Officer are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial 
accounts and the information they contain. We have conducted an independent audit of 
these financial accounts in order to express an opinion on them to the members of the Union. 

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide 
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial accounts are free of material misstatement. 
Our procedures included examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts 
and other disclosures in the financial accounts, and the evaluation of accounting policies and 
significant accounting estimates. These procedures have been undertaken to form an 
opinion as to whether, in all material respects, the financial accounts are presented fairly in 
accordance with Australian accounting concepts and standards and statutory requirements 
so as to present a view of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information 
Postal Plumbing and Allied Serviced Union of Australia which is consistent with our 
understanding of its financial position and the results of its operations. 

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis. 

Audit Opinion 
We have received all the information and explanations we required for the purposes of our 
audit. 

In our opinion: 
(i) There were kept by the Union in respect of the year under review, satisfactory 

accounting records detailing the sources and nature of the income of the union 
(including income from members) and the nature and purposes of expenditure; and 

(ii) The attached accounts and statement, including the Certificates of the Committee of 
Management and the Accounting Officer, are prepared in accordance with Section 273 
of the Workplace Relations Act, 1996. The accounts set out on pages 1 to 8 have 
been prepared from the accounting records of the Union and are properly drawn up so 
as to give a true and fair view of: 

(a) The financial affairs of the Union as at 31 March 2004 and 

(b) The income and expenditure and surplus of the union for the year ended on that 
date. 

and are in accordance with Statement of Accounting Concepts and applicable 
accounting standards. 

~~~' 
Morris & Batzloff 
Chartered Accountants 

~0 _ 6 _ , 2004 Page 9 
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COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

STATEMENT OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE 
For The Year Ended 31 March 2004 

INCOME 

INCOME FROM MEMBERS 

Contributions 
Branch Levy 
Entrance Fees 
Defence Levy 

TOTAL INCOME FROM MEMBERS 

OTHER INCOME 

Interest Received 
Meeting Attendance 
Sundry Income. 
Funeral Benefits Received 
Funeral Benefits Paid 
Training Grant Income 
Training Grant Expenses 
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 

TOTAL INCOME 

EXPENDITURE 
Affiliations 
Federal Office Contributions 
Industrial Campaign Expenses 
Industrial Support 
Wages- Officials 
Wages- Staff 
BERT 
Superannuation - Officials 
Superannuation- Staff 
Workcover 
Holiday Pay Provided - Officials 
Holiday Pay Provided - Staff 
Long Service Leave & Retirement Allowance- Officials 
Long Service Leave & Retirement Allowance- Staff 
Audit Fees 
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2004 
$ 

519 469 
137 262 

3 282 
2 150 

662 163 

6 368 
35 584 

6 672 
49 000 

(49 000) 
109 896 
(63 399) 

(5 272) 

89849 

752 012 

14 021 
51 944 

3 880 
11 923 

234 790 
118 757 

25 281 
10 560 

1 315 
3 441 
(301) 

15 908 
25 578 
14 405 

2003 
$ 

527 107 
50474 

3 920 
25 699 

607 200 

4 044 
30 724 
49 228 
19 000 

(19 000) 
216 981 

(117 717) 
(450) 

182810 

790 010 

16 888 
55 143 

3 760 

250 024 
112 960 

2 915 
29 092 
10 543 

1 506 
302 

1 226 
10 009 

2 457 
7 355 



COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

STATEMENT OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE 
For The Year Ended 31 March 2004 

2004 2003 
$ $ 

EXPENDITURE (Cont'd) 
Donations 1 000 2 775 
Legal Fees 7 155 2 601 
Motor Vehicle Running Expenses 21 567 21 534 
Motor Vehicle Fringe Benefits Tax 4273 2 304 
Motor Vehicle Depreciation 14 001 14 568 
Promotions 5476 5 808 
Tolls, Parking, Taxis 1 812 2 859 
Telephone 28 517 28 266 
Administration Expenses: 

Printing & Stationery 17 162 19 708 
Newsletter 6 553 36 667 
Postage 10 595 10 068 
Cleaning 3 600 1 860 
Photocopying 1 322 1 206 
Insurance 7 732 6 673 
Amenities 2 025 1 664 
Uniforms 1 616 1 570 
Equipment Maintenance 8 271 7 435 
Building Maintenance 12184 11 673 
Computer Expenses 8 217 15 517 
Staff Training 829 3 170 

Organisers Expenses 
Overnight Allowance 3 605 2431 
Airfares and Accommodation 5 557 6 259 

Meetings Expenses 8 410 8 749 
Subscriptions 1 362 2 094 
Bank Charges 6 925 6 810 
Lodgement Fees 33 
Interest Paid 2 029 5 911 
Sundry Expenses 9 977 3 609 
Depreciation - Furniture & Equipment 2 953 2 710 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 736 260 740 679 

NET SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 15 752 49 331 
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COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31 March 2004 

NOTES 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash on Hand 
Cash at Bank 3 
Other Debtors 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Plant & Equipment 4 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Federal Office- Contributions 
Other Creditors and Accrued Expenses 
Provision for Holiday Pay 
Provision for Long Service Leave & Retiring Allowance 

56 528 
Loan from CEPU Other Divisions 5 
Unexpended Grant Income 
Members Wages Collected 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Loan from CEPU Other Divisions 5 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

ACCUMULATED FUNDS 6 
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2004 2003 
$ $ 

1 100 600 
292 026 292 568 

8 123 9 106 

301 249 302 274 

534 018 527 897 

835 267 830 171 

157 602 234 757 
70 061 42 360 
23441 20 301 

98 014 

10 400 10 400 
2 543 
2 746 2 746 

364 807 367 092 

5 763 14 134 

370 570 381 226 

464697 448 945 

464697 448945 



COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31 March 2004 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements are a special purpose financial report prepared in order to 
satisfy the accounts preparation requirements of the Workplace Relations Act 1996. 
The Committee of Management has determined that the Union is not a reporting 
entity. The statements are prepared on an accruals basis. In accordance with 
generally accepted principles of organization, membership contributions are 
accounted for on a cash receipt basis. Otherwise, the accounts are prepared under 
the historical cost convention. 

The statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Workplace Relations Act 1996 and the following applicable Accounting Standards 
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements: 

AASB 1025 Application of Reporting Entity Concept and Other Amendments 

No other applicable Accounting Standards or other mandatory professional reporting 
requirements have been applied. 

In particular: 

(a) The accounts have not been adjusted to record either changes in the general 
purchasing power of the dollar or in the price of specific assets other than as 
disclosed in these financial statements. 

(b) Plant and equipment are included at cost. All assets are depreciated over their 
useful lives. The Unions Peel Street property is valued in accordance with an 
independent valuation carried out on 13 February 2002. No depreciation has 
been charged against the Peel Street property during the year ended 31 March 
2004. 

(c) No provision for income tax is necessary as Trade Unions are exempt from 
income tax under Section 50-15 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(d) Long service leave and retiring allowance accrued to officials up to 30 June 
1999 is taken up in the books of the Federal Office. Long service leave and 
retiring allowance accrued to officials from 1 July 1999 is taken up in the books 
of the Queensland Branch. 

(e) As a sponsor of the BERT Fund the Union may receive distributions of income 
from the Fund. In accordance with the Sponsors Deed all distributions must be 
loaned back to the Fund until they are expended ·on welfare or related 
assistance as agreed upon by the Sponsors. The distributions from the Fund 
and welfare assistance paid from the loan account are not shown as income or 
expenditure of the Union as the Union has no control over the funds nor are the 
funds available for Union purposes. 
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COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31 March 2004 

2. INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED TO MEMBERS OR REGISTRAR 

In accordance with the requirements of the Workplace Relations Act 1996, the 
attention of members is drawn to the provisions of Sub-Sections (1 ), (2) and (3) of 
Section 274 which reads as follows: 

(1) A members of an organization, or a Registrar, may apply to the organization 
for specified prescribed information in relation to the organization. 

(2) An organization shall, on application made under Sub-Section ( 1) by a 
member of an organization of a Registrar, make the specified information 
available to the members or Registrar in such manner, and within such time, 
as is prescribed. 

(3) A Registrar may only make an application under Sub-Section (1) at the 
request of a member of the organization concerned, and the Registrar shall 
provide to a member information received because of an application made at 
the request of the member. 

3. CASH AT BANK 

General Fund Cheque Account 
Training Cheque Accounts 
Members Wages Account 
Generallnvestment Cash Mgt Call Account 
Members Equity Account 
Term Deposit 
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2004 2003 . 
$ $ 

98 779 

2 856 

76 158 
114 233 

292 026 

119 145 
17 544 

2 850 
22 043 

130 986 

292 568 



COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31 March 2004 

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Peel Street Property- at independent valuation 
Office Equipment at cost 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Motor Vehicles at cost 

Accumulated Depreciation 

5. LOAN FROM CEPU OTHER DIVISIONS 

Current liability 
Non-current liability 

6. ACCUMULATED FUNDS 

Accumulated Funds at Start of Year 
Surplus/(Deficit) For Year 
Property Revaluation Reserve 

Accumulated Funds at End of Year 
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2004 2003 
$ $ 

461 421 
88 631 

(77111) 
96 249 

(35 172) 

534 018 

10 400 
5 763 

16163 

292 879 
15 752 

156 066 

464 697 

461 421 
88 646 

(76 346) 
84100 

(29 924) 

527 897 

10400 
14134 

24534 

243 548 
49 331 

156 066 

448 945 



COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

ACCOUNTING OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE 

I, Jorgen Gullestrup, being the Officer responsible for keeping the accounting records 
of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal Plumbing and 
Allied Serviced Union of Australia, certify that as at 31 March 2004, the number of 
members of the Union was 2,575. 

In my opinion: 

(i) The attached accounts show a true and fair view of the financial affairs of the 
Union as at 31 March 2004; 

(ii) A record has been kept of all moneys paid by, or collected from, members and 
all moneys so paid or collected have been credited to the bank account to 
which those moneys are to be credited, in accordance with the rules of the 
Union; 

(iii) Before any expenditure was incurred by the Union, approval of the incurring of 
the expenditure was obtained in accordance with the rules of the Union; 

(iv) With regards to funds of the Union raised by compulsory levies or voluntary 
contributions from members, or funds other than the General Fund operated in 
accordance with the rules, no payments were made out of any such fund for 
purposes other than those for which the fund was operated; 

(v) No loans or other financial benefits, other than remuneration in respect of their 
full time employment with the Union, were made to persons holding office in 
the Union; and 

(vi) The register of members of the Union was maintained in accordance with the 
Workplace Relations Act, 1996. 

J rgen Gullestrup 

t:,o - 6 _ , 2004 
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COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION 
POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT'S CERTIFICATE 

We, Jorgen Gullestrup and Trevor Seehusen being two members of the committee of 
management of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal 
Plumbing and Allied Serviced Union of Australia, do state on behalf of the committee, 
and in accordance with a resolution passed by the committee that-

(i) In the opinion of the Committee of Management, the attached accounts show a 
true and fair view of the financial affairs of the Union as at 31 March, 2004; 

(ii) In the opinion of the Committee of Management, meetings of the Committee 
were held during the year ended 31 March 2004, in accordance with the Rules 
of the Union; 

(iii) To the knowledge of any members of the Committee, there have been no 
instances where records of the Union or other documents (not being documents 
containing ·information made available to a member of the Union under sub­
section 27 4 (2) of the Workplace Relations Act, 1996) or copies of those records 
or documents, or copies of the rules of the Union have not been furnished, or 
made available, to members in accordance with the requirements of the 
Workplace Relations Act, 1996, the Regulations thereto or the rules of the 
Union; and 

(iv) The Union has complied with sub-section 279 (1) and (6) of the Act in relation to 
the financial accounts in respect of the year ended 31 March 2003 and of the 
Auditors' Report thereon. 

J gen Gullestrup 

~-1.::.-

Trevor Seehusen 

, 2004 
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COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION POSTAL 
PLUMBING AND ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT 

To the members of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal 
Plumbing and Allied Serviced Union of Australia. 

Scope 
We have audited the financial accounts of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy 
Information Postal Plumbing and Allied Serviced Union of Australia for the year ended 31 
March 2004 as set out on pages 1 to 8. The Union's Committee of Management and 
Accounting Officer are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial 
accounts and the information they contain. We have conducted an independent audit of 
these financial accounts in order to express an opinion on them to the members of the Union. 

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide 
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial accounts are free of material misstatement. 
Our procedures included examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts 
and other disclosures in the financial accounts, and the evaluation of accounting policies and 
significant accounting estimates. These procedures have been undertaken to form an 
opinion as to whether, in all material respects, the financial accounts are presented fairly in 
accordance with Australian accounting concepts and standards and statutory requirements 
so as to present a view of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information 
Postal Plumbing and Allied Serviced Union of Australia which is consistent with our 
understanding of its financial position and the results of its operations. 

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis. 

Audit Opinion 
We have received all the information and explanations we required for the purposes of our 
audit. 

In our opinion: 
(i) There were kept by the Union in respect of the year under review, satisfactory 

accounting records detailing the sources and nature of the income of the union 
(including income from members) and the nature and purposes of expenditure; and 

(ii) The attached accounts and statement, including the Certificates of the Committee of 
Management and the Accounting Officer, are prepared in accordance with Section 273 
of the Workplace Relations Act, 1996. The accounts set out on pages 1 to 8 have 
been prepared from the accounting records of the Union and are properly drawn up so 
as to give a true and fair view of: 

(a) The financial affairs of the Union as at 31 March 2004 and 

(b) The income and expenditure and surplus of the union for the year ended on that 
date. 

and are in accordance with Statement of Accounting Concepts and applicable 
accounting standards. 

~:~t:, 
Morris & Batzloff 
Chartered Accountants 

·?:,c _ <o - , 2004 Page 9 



Australian Government 

Australian Industrial Registry 

FACSIMILE 
TO Mr Jorgen Gullestrup, Divisional Branch Secretary 

lever 8, Terrace Towers 
80 William Street, East Sydney, NSW 2011 

Telephone: (02) 8374 6666 
Fax: (02) 9380 6990 

Organisation CEPU Plumbing Division, Queensland Divisional Branch 

Fax Number 07 3844 8233 Phone Number I 07 3844 8433 

FROM ~B=e=l=in=d=a=P=e=n=na~==========================================~ 
Email belinda.penna@air.gov.au 

Location Australian Industrial Registry (NSW Registry Office) 

Fax Number 02 9380 6990 I Phone Number 1 o2 8374 6618 

No of Pages (including cover) I 3 I Date I 27 1o7 12oo4 

Please notify sender if not all pages were received. Time 12:12 PM 

Any information about individuals contained in this fax is CONFIDENTIAL and may NOT be used or 
disclosed further. If you are NOT the intended recipient, please contact the sender IMMEDIATELY. 

MESSAGE: 

Dear Mr Gullestrup, 

I refer to our telephone conversation today in reference to the lodgement of the financial 
statements and accounts for the year ending 31 March 2004. Before consideration can be given to 
filing the documents two further pieces of information are required. 

Please forward a copy of the Branch Journal referred to in your letter dated 19 July 2004 (copy 
attached), and a copy of the Committee of Management Decision taken on the 30 March 2004, .:)( 
referred to in your letter of 15 July 2004 (copy also attached). Although the letter states a copy of 
that decision was enclosed, it was not received with the letter. 

Please forward this additional information directly to me in the Sydney Registry at the above 
address. 

Regards 

Belinda Penna -¥ r .... ~ '' o n .\(\..o.. 

., . ;l.(, c,. vv..o... >,\-<-1" 
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ERRORS 
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Location I Australisn;lndustrial Registry (NSW Regis\!y Office) 

Fax Number I 02 '9380 '6S90 I Phone Number I o2 s374 6618 

No of Pages (including cover) I 3 I Date 127/07/2004 
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.OMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION POSTAL PLUMBING AND ALLIED 
SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

CONCISE STATEMENT OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE 
For The Year Ended 31 March 2004 

2004 2003 
$ $ 

INCOME 

INCOME FROM MEMBERS 
Contributions 519 469 527 107 
Branch Levy 137 262 50 474 
Entrance Fees 3 282 3 920 
Defence Levy 2 ISO 25 699 

TOTAL INCOME FROM MEMBERS 662 163 607 200 

OTHER INCOME 
Interest Received 6 368 4 044 
Meeting Attendance 35 584 30 724 
Other Income 47 897 148 042 

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 89 849 182 810 

TOTAL INCOME 752 012 790 010 

EXPENDITURE 
Affiliations 14 021 16 888 
Federal Office Contributions 51 944 55 143 
Industrial Support II 923 
Industrial Campaign Expenses 3 880 3 760 
Wages - Officials 234 790 250 024 
Wages - Staff 118 757 112 960 

BERT 2 915 
Superannuation - Officials 25 281 29 092 
·superannuation - Staff 10 560 10 543 
Holiday Pay Provided -Officials 3 441 302 
Holiday Pay Provided - Staff (301) I 226 
Long Service Leave & Retirement Allowance - Officials IS 908 10 009 
Long Service Leave & Retirement Allowance - Staff 25 578 2 457 
Audit Fees 14 405 7 355 
Donations I 000 2 775 
Legal Fees 7 155 2 601 
Administration Expenses 80 106 117211 
Organisers Expenses 9 162 8 690 
Meetings Expenses 8 410 8 749 
Interest Paid 2 029 5911 
Other Expenses 95 258 89 358 
Depreciation 2 953 2 710 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 736 260 740 679 

NET SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR IS 752 49 331 

Page I 
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COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICAL ELECTRONIC ENERGY INFORMATION POSTAL PLUMBING AND 
ALLIED SERVICES UNION OF AUSTRALIA 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash on Hand 
Cash at Bank 
Other Debtors 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Plant & Equipment 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Federal Office - Contributions 
Other Creditors and Accrued Expenses 
Provision for Holiday Pay 

BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31 March 2004 

Provision for Long Service Leave & Retiring Allowance 
Loan from CEPU Other Divisions 
Unexpended Grant Income 
Members Wages Collected 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Loan from CEPU Other Divisions 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

ACCUMULATED FUNDS 

12 Plumbers Pipeline 

Page 2 

2004 
$ 

I 100 
292 026 

8 123 

301 249 

534 018 

835 267 

157 602 
70 061 
23 441 
98 014 
10 40.0 
2 543 
2 746 

364 807 

5 763 

370 570 

464 697 

464 697 

2003 
$ 

600 
292 568 

9 106 

302 274 

527 897 

830 171 

234 757 
42 360 
20 301 
56 528 
10 400 

2 746 

367 092 

14 134 

381 226 

448 945 

448 945 
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NOTES TO THE CONCISE FINANCIAL REPORT 
FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2004 

Note I Information on the concise financial report 
The financial statements and disclosures in the concise financial report have been derived from the financial report of Communications 
Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal Plumbing and Allied Services Union of Australia for the year ended 31 March 2004. 

A copy of the full financial report and auditors report will be sent to any member, free of charge, on request. 

Note 2 Basis of preparation of the concise Financial Report 

The financial statements, specific disclosures and other information in the concise financial report is derived from and is consistent with the 
full financial report of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal Plumbing and Allied Services Union of Australia. 

The concise financial report cannot be expected to provide as detailed an understanding of the financial performance and financial position 
of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal Plumbing and Allied Services Union of Australia as the full financial 
report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the union and are consistent with those of the previous financial year. 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT 

To the members of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal Plumbing and Allied Services Union of Australia. 

Scope 
We have audited the concise financial accounts of the Communications Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal Plumbing and Allied 
Services Union of Australia for the year ended 31 March 2004 as set out on pages I to 2. The Union's Committee of Management aJ!d 
Accounting Officer are responsible for the preparation and presentation of. the concise financial accounts and the information they contain. 

We have conducted an independent audit of these concise financial accounts in order to express an opinion on them to the members of the 
Union. We have also performed an independent audit of the full financial accounts of the Union for the year ended 31 March 2004, which was 
not subject to qualification. Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance 
as to whether the concise financial accounts are free of material misstatement. 

Our procedures included testing that the information in the concise financial accounts is consistent with the full financial accounts. These 
procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion as to whether, in all material respects, the financial accounts are presented fairly in 
accordance with Australian accounting concepts and standards and statutory requirements so as to present a view of the Communications 
Electrical Electronic Energy Information Postal Plumbing and Allied Serviced Union of Australia ,which is consistent with our understanding 
of its financial position and the results of its operations. The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis. 

Audit Opinion 
In our opinion: 

The attached concise financial accounts have been prepared from the accounting records of the Union and are properly drawn up so as to 
give a true and fair view of: 

a) The financial affairs of the Union as at 31 March 2004; and 
b) The income and expenditure and surplus ofthe union for the year ended on that date. 

Norman J Hoare 
Registered Company Auditor 
Morris & Batzloff 
Chartered Accountants 

,2004 

Page 3 
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Mr Jorgen Gullestrup 
Divisional Branch Secretary 
Queensland Divisional Branch 
CEPU Plumbing Division 
PO Box 3596 
SOUTH BRISBANE QLD 4101 

Dear Mr Gullestrup 

level 8, Terrace Towers 
80 William Street. East Sydney, NSW 2011 

Telephone: (02) 8374 6666 
Fax: (02) 9380 6990 

Re: Lodgement of the Financial Statements and Accounts for the CEPU Plumbing Division, 
Queensland Divisional Branch for the year ending 31 March 2004 (FR2004/232) 

I refer to your letter of 19 July 2003 enclosing copies of your organisation's financial reports, and a 
copy of the journal in which they were published, which was received separately on 3 August 2004. 

The dates on the documents you have provided suggest that your organisation may not have fully 
complied with the requirements for the provision of these documents to its members. 

In particular, the report published in the journal appears to be undated and unsigned by the 
Auditor. I note that according to your letter, the journal was supplied to members on 9 June 2003. 
The date on the Auditors report received under cover of your letter of 19 July 2004 is 30 June 
2004. Your letter also indicates the report as supplied to member's was presented to your AGM on 
29 June 2004. 

It would appear that the documents provided to members and presented to the meeting were a 
draft or earlier version of the auditor's proposed report that he had not yet signed. 

If so, your organisation has not yet complied with the requirements of s279(1) of the Workplace 
Relations Act 1996. In summary, this provision requires an organisation to provide its members 
"a copy of the report of the auditor" and then to present that report to a meeting of members or of 
the committee of management within the interval specified. Following presentation to the meeting, 
the report is to be lodged in the Industrial Registry with your certificate confirming it is a copy of 
that presented to the meeting. 

I would appreciate your comments on this matter. I have replied separately to your letter of 15 July 
concerning the statement required under s269 of the Act. 

If you wish to discuss this letter please contact me on 02 837 4 6666. 

Yours sincerely, 

Peter McKerrow 
Assistant Manager, NSW Registry 

11 August 2004 



Australian Government 

Australian Industrial Registry 

Level 8, Terrace Towers 
so William Street, East Sydney, NSW 2011 

Telephone: (02) 8374 6666 
Fax: (02) 9380 6990 

FACSIMILE 
TO I Mr Jorgen Gullestrup, Queensland Divisional Branch Secretary 

Organisation CEPU Plumbing Division 

Fax Number 

FROM 

Email 

Location 

Fax Number 

(07) 3844 8233 

Belinda Penna 

belinda.penna@air.gov.au 

Australian Industrial Registry 

02 9380 6990 

No of Pages (including cover) 

Please notify sender if not all pages were received. 

Phone Number I (07) 3844 8433 

Phone Number I 02 8374 6618 

Date I 23/09/2004 

Time I 4:25 PM 

Any information about individuals contained in this fax is CONFIDENTIAL and may NOT be used or 
disclosed further. If you are NOT the intended recipient, please contact the sender IMMEDIATELY. 

MESSAGE: 

Dear Mr Gullestrup, 

Attached is a copy of a letter dated 11 August 2004 from Mr Peter McKerrow of this office. 
Could you please advise when it is likely that the union will be able to reply to this letter, as the 
matter remains outstanding. 

Regards, 

Belinda Penna 
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MESSAGE: 

Dear Mr Gullestrup, 

' . 
Attached is a copy. of a le;tter dated. 11 August·2004 from Mr Peter McKerrow of this office. 



CE.PU PLli!IIIIINQ DM!IION 
QUEENSUIND BR.QNCN 

Fax 
To: 

From: 

Fax: m_ 

CEPU PLUMBING DIVISION 

q '?::. '&) t,o,,a, 0 Phone: 

Pages: 

" \ Re"• l \ L ("'->, 
L e ~e.tr ~'t'"""> 

QUEENSLAND BRANCH 
A.B.N. 51 91 B B67 235 

JORGEN GULLESTRUP 
Branch Secretary 

Posta! Address 
PO Box3596, South Brisbane 4101 

4i PeelS~ South Brisbane 4101 

Ph: 07 3844 8433 
fax: 07 3844 8233 

This transmission is intended for the addressee only- if you have received this 
transmission in error, ple;;Jse call the above number as soon as possible. 

tl& 
~ Communications Electrical Electronic Energy lnforrnallon Pos\al Plumbing and AUied Se!Vices Union of Australia. 



CEPU PLUMe lNG DMSION 
QU~I:HSLJ\ND SRAt!CH 

JG:db 

CEPU PLUMBING DIVISION 

6 September, 2004. 

Mr. Peter McKerrow 
Australian Industrial Registry 
LevelS Terrace Towers· 
80 William Street 
EAST SYDNEY. NSW 2011. 

Dear Mr McKerrow 

QUEENSLAND BRANCH 
A.B.N. 51 918 867 235 

JORGEN GULLESffiUP 
Branch Secretary 

Postal Address 
PO Box 3596, South Brlsl:lane 4101 

41 Peel St, South Brisbane 4101 

Ph: 07 3844 8433 
Fax: 07 3844 8233 

In reference to your correspondence of 11 August 2004 and our subsequent 
phone conversation please find enclosed explanation to the concerns raised. 

While we are now fully aware of the requirements for the "final audit report" to 
be printed in the Plumbers Pipeline and presented to the Unions Annual 
General Meeting we would suggest that. the mistake made was not material. 

The "draft" report printed in the Plumbers Pipeline and subsequent presented 
to the Annual General Meeting was a fully identical report to that signed by 
our Auditor. We were of the mistaken belief that the report was to be signed 
once it had been approved by the membership. 

We respectfully request that you exercise discretion to finalise this matter on 
the undertaking that the Union in future will ensure that the report is signed 
before it is published and presented to the Annual General Meeting. 

Is there any training or assistance available to ensure that we comply with our 
requirements next year? In our conversation you mentioned that the 
requirements for reporting would change next year. Should any such 
assistance be available please contact our office manager Deanne Browne on 
(07) 3844 8433. 

Regar 

~ 
rgen Gullestrup 

TATE SECRETARY 

• Communications Elecllical Electronic Enercy Information Postal Plumbing aod Allied Servicas Union of Australia. 



Australian Government 

Australian Industrial Registry 

Mr Jorgen Gullestrup 
Divisional Branch Secretary 
Queensland Divisional Branch 
CEPU Plumbing Division 
PO Box 3596 
SOUTH BRISBANE OLD 4101 

Dear Mr Gullestrup 

Level 8, Terrace Towers 
80 William Street, East Sydney, NSW 2011 

Telephone: (02) 8374 6666 
Fax: (02) 9380 6990 

Re: Financial Documents for the CEPU Plumbing Division, Queensland Divisional Branch 
for the year ending 31 March 2004 (FR2004/232) 

Thank you for your letter, which was received in the Registry via facsimile on 27 September 2004. 

I note your statement that the documents provided to members were identical to the report signed 
by the auditor. Accordingly, the Registry accepts that the information needs of the members of the 
Branch have been satisfied on this occasion. 

Following discussion with Ms Browne of your office, I have enclosed copies of Fact Sheets 
prepared by the Registry explaining the financial reporting requirements which will apply to your 
organisation for its current financial year and a copy of a letter sent to organisations whose 
financial year ends on 30 June explaining the reporting process. 

I have also sent a copy of this information to the Branch's auditors for their information. 

The branch financial documents have been now been filed, and may be viewed on the internet at 
www.e-airc.gov.au/128vpqld/financial. 

I would strongly urge the Branch to obtain a current copy of the relevant legislation including the 
RAO Schedule, RAO Regulations and the Industrial Registrar's Reporting Guidelines. 

I would be happy to discuss or explain the requirements of the legislation with you when 
convenient. Please call me on 02 837 4 6666. 

Yours sincerely, 

, eter McKerrow 
Assistant Manager, NSW Registry 

29 September 2004 



Fact Sheet No. 05/2003 7 May 2003, Australian Industrial Registry 

Registration and Accountability of Organisations Legislation Fact Sheet 

Records to be kept and lodged by organisations 

The Registration and Accountability of Organisations Schedule (Schedule 1B to the Workplace Relations Act 1996) [the RAO 
Schedule), generally comes into operation on 12 May 2003. The RAO Schedule contains most of the matters previously dealt 
with in the body of the Workplace Relarions Act 1996 [the Act], which related to the registration and functioning of 
organisations of employers and employees under the Act. The Workplace Relations Legislation Amendmellt (Registration and 
Accoulltability of Organisations) (Consequential Provisions) Act 2002 [the RAOCP Act], deals with various transitional 
provisions arising from the introduction of the RAO Schedule. 

Records to be kept by organisations (both employer and employee) 

Part 2, Chapter 8 of the RAO Schedule requires an organisation to keep membership records, lists of offices and office holders 
and other records as prescribed in the RAO Regulations. Copies of such lists and other records must be lodged annually with 
the Industrial Registry. There is also a requirement for an organisation to inform the Registry if there are changes to any of the 
records. 

These matters were previously dealt with by Part IX, Division 10 of the Workplace Relations Act 1996 (the Act). 

Under s230 of the RAO Schedule and regulation 147 of the RAO Regulations an organisation must keep and lodge in the 
Industrial Registry certain records. These matters were previously covered in s268 of the Act. 

NEW: .,. Under regulation 147(b), (c), (e) and (f) an organisation must also keep and lodge: 

a record of the name of each branch that commenced operation in the previous 12 months; 
a record of the name of each branch that ceased operation in the previous 12 months; 
a record of each election that must, under the rules of the organisation, be held during each year commencing 1 
January for an office in the organisation and for an office in a branch of the organisation; and 
a record of the number of members on 31 December in the previous year; 

Note: ~ Previously, the requirement to lodge a record of each election that must be held applied to each year commencing 1 
April. 

Note: .,._ Previously, the requirement to lodge the number of members only applied to an organisation of employees and was 
related to the number of persons who were, on 
1 January, both members and employees or independent contractors. The new requirement will apply to an organisation of 
employers as well as an organisation of employees. 

Obligation to lodge information in Industrial Registry 

The obligation to lodge a "statutory declarationn signed by the secretary or other prescribed officer to accompany documents 
required to be lodged annually has been replaced with an obligation to lodge a "declaration" [s233(1)]. 

Records to be held for 7 years 

NEW: .,. An organisation must keep a copy ofthe register of members as it stood on 
31 December in each year for the period of 7 years after the 31 December concerned [s231(1)]. 

NEW: .,._ An organisation must also keep a copy of the register, or a part of the register, as it stood on the day provided for in 
the rules of the organisation, in accordance with subparagraph 143(1)(e)(i) of the RAO Schedule, as the day on which the roll of 
voters for a ballot for an election for office is to be closed. The organisation must keep the copy for the period of 7 years after 
that day. This requirement does not apply if the AEC has determined that a ballot for an election for office is not required 
[s231(2) and reg. 148]. 
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Access to certain records by person authorised by Registrat· 

A person authorised by a Registrar may inspect, and make copies of, or lake extracts from, the records kept by an organisation 
[s235]. This power was previously covered in s268(!0) of the Act. 

NEW: .,_ The records which may be inspected and copied include the records required to be kept for 7 years under s231 
( s235(1 )]. 

NEW: ~The records may be made available to the authorised person in a form agreed to by the authorised person [s235(3)]. 

Delivery of copy of t·ecot·ds to Registrat· 

A Registrar may, in certain circumstances, direct an organisation to deliver to the Registrar a copy of the register of members or 
part of the register of members kept under section 230 or 231 for a member of the organisation to inspect at a specified registry 
[s236]. This power was previously covered in s268(12) of the Act. 

NEW: ~The Registrar will have power to request that a copy of the register of members kept for 7 years under s231 be 
delivered to the Registrar [s236(2)]. 

NEW: ._..A copy of a record delivered to the Registrar may be in the form of a hard copy or, if the Registrar agrees, in 
electronic form (s236(4)]. 

NEW: ..,._ A Registrar may, if the Registrar considers it appropriate in the circumstances, provide a copy of the document to a 
member of the organisation [s236(5)]. 

Providing copy of rules or list of offices etc. on request by member 

A member of an organisation may request the organisation, or a branch of the organisation, to provide to the member a copy of 
the rules of the organisation or branch or a copy of any amendments of the rules made since a specified time. This provision 
was previously covered in s289 of the Act. 

NEW: ..,._ In addition to the above a member of an organisation will be able to request the organisation for a copy of the list of 
the offices, or of the persons holding the offices, of an organisation or branch lodged in the Industrial Registry on behalf of the 
organisation [s347(I)(c)]. 

NEW: ~The request must be in writing and must specify a period (of not less than 14 days) within which the relevant copy 
must be provided (s347(2)]. 

NEW: ..,._ An organisation or branch whose rules or list of offices, or of the persons holding the offices, are available on the 
Internet must inform a member seeking a copy of that fact. However, informing the member of that fact does not affect the 
organisation's or branch's other obligations under section 347 and the regulations [s347(3)]. 

Note: ..,._The regulations prescribe the manner in which a request under section 347 must be made and the time within which 
the organisation or branch must respond to the request. Fees may be charged by an organisation or branch for providing a copy 
of the rules or amendments or a copy of a list of offices to a member (s347(4) and reg. 19]. 

Right of access to organisation's books 

NEW: ..,_ An officer of an organisation or a branch or a person who has ceased to be an officer of an organisation or a branch 
during the period of 7 years after ceasing to be an officer may inspect the books of the organisation at all reasonable times for 
the purposes of a legal proceeding. "Books" includes a register, any other record of information and financial reports or 
financial records, however compiled, recorded or stored and a document [s280]. 
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Consequential Provisions 

The Workplace Relations Legislation Amendment (Registration and Accountability of Organisations) (Consequential 
Provisions) Act 2002 deem an organisation's register of members and list of offices and list of office holders kept under the 
Workplace Relations Act 1996 to be the register of members and list of offices under the relevant provisions of the RAO 
Schedule [item 42]. 

The changes to the legislation take effect on 12 May 2003. 

This material has been prepared by the Australian Industrial Registry as a general guide to the Workplace Relations (Registration and Accountability of 

Organisations) legislation. This material should not be treated as advice on the circumstances of any particular case. This material does not have any legal 

status; the relevant law is set out in Schedule 1 B to the Workplace Relations Act 1996 (the RAO Schedule), the RAO Schedule Regulations and the 

Workplace Relations Legislation Amendment (Registration and Accountability of Organisations) (Consequential Provisions) Act 2002. 

Recurring Obligations To Keep And Lodge Information Under Schedule lB to the Workplace 
Relations Act 1996 (RAO Schedule) and the RAO Schedule Regulations 

I Information ·I Key Contents 

IIMainten.ance ofRe. g·-i.s_t_e. r~,;A-"-d-'e-c-'la-r-'at'-io_n_bc.y_t_h_e_s.c.ec_r_e"'"ta_r_y_o_r.c.o~th_e_r_p:_r-es_c_r-ib_e_d-'o-f-fl-'.c-e_r_c-'er-'t-if-y-in-g-'t-h_a_t-th_e_r_e_g-is-'t-er-of"-
of Members . members has, during the immediately preceding calendar year, been kept and 

,maintained as required bys230(l)(a)and (2) [s233(1)(a)j 

!List of Offices · A list of the offices in the organisation and each branch I 
I , (note the definition of "office"and "officer" in s6and s9)[s230(1)(b)}. .. . 

iList-.;f'-0-·f-fi-'c-e·-'_h_o_l_d.c.er-s~~',; A'-'-'-1-'is_t_o-'f-th-e~names, postal addresses and occupations of the persons holding the offices I 

I
. '(note definition of "office" and "officer" 

.·in s6 and s9) [s230(l)(c)j 
!"'"L"'"is_t_o_f-'B-.. -ra'-n-c~h-'e's--~ 

!New Branches 

loJd Branches 

I 
Addresses of 
Organisation and 

·Branches 

. ,IArecord of the name of each branch ofthe organisation[s230(1)(d) and reg, 147(a)] 

"!A record of the name of each branch that commenced operation in the previous 12 

1months [s230(1)(d) and reg. 147(b)} 

[A ... r.eco.rd of .. the na·m· e of .each .bran. ch that ceased operati.on in the. pr.evious 12 month. s 
l£s230(l).(d)and reg. 147(c)j . . . . . .. . .... . . . .. . . . . . 

:jA record of the address of the office of the organisation and the office of each branch 
l[s230(1)(d) and reg.147(d)} 

I 
r---~~--~~--r~----~--~----~----------~--------------~--1 

1

1Eiections in Organisation ·!A record of each election that must, under the rules of the organisation, be held during 

1
and Branches !each year commencing 1 January for an office in the organisation and branch of the 

1 !organisation [s230(l)(d)} andreg. 147(e)J . .. . . . . 

!Statement concerning 

Please note: 

]A record of the number of members on 31 December in the previous year. 
I 
Ju the organisation has entered into an agreement under sl51(1) of the Schedule- a 
!record of the number of members of the organisation who were, on 1 January in that 
llyear, ineligible State members in relation to the organisation, within the meaning of 
slSO of the Schedule 

l[s230(l)(d)} and reg. 147(/) and (g)} 

1. A copy of the above records must be lodged in the Industrial Registry, once in each year, at any time during the oeriod of 3 months 
commencing on 1 Januarv, certified by declaration signed by the secretary or other prescribed officer to be a correct statement of the 
information contained in that record {s233(l)(b) a.rd [reg 146}. 

2. In the event of any change to any of the abovementioned records, an organisation must, within 35 days of the change, lodge in the 
Industrial Registry, a notification of such change certified by declaration signed by the secretary or other prescribed officer of the organi-sation 
to be a correct statement of the changes made [s233(2)and reg. 148]. 

3. The above requirements apply to documents required to be lodged from 1 January 2004. 
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Fact Sheet No. 06/2003 7 May 2003, Australian Industrial Registry 

Registration and Accountability of Organisations Legislation Fact Sheet 

Accounting, Auditing and Reporting Obligations 

The Registration and Accountability of Organisations Schedule (Schedule \8 to the Workplace Relations Act /996) (the RAO 
Schedule(, generally comes into operation on 12 May 2003. The RAO Schedule contains most of the matters previously dealt 
with in the body of the Workplace Relations Act /996 [the Act], which relate to the registration and functioning of 
organisations of employers and employees under the Act. The Workplace Relations Legislation Amendment (Registration and 
Accountability of Organisations) (Consequential Provisions) Act 2002jthe RAOCP Act(, deals with various transitional 
provisions arising from the introduction of the Schedule. 

Application of obligations 

The accounting, auditing and reporting obligations set out in Chapter 8, Part 3 of the RAO Schedule apply to each reporting 
uuit of an organisation (s242) in relation to a financial year of the organisation that commences on or after commencement of 
the reporting guidelines (item 44(1) ofRAOCP Act) unless the reporting unit obtains an exemption in relation to the financial 
year (s271 ). 

Reduced reporting requirements may apply to a reporting unit:-

• with substantial common membership with a State registered body (s269), or 
• which is the whole of the organisation and has income not exceeding $\00,000 (s270) 

The corresponding obligations set out in Part IX, Division II of the Workplace Relations Act /996 continue to apply to an 
organisation or a branch of an organisation in relation to a financial year that had started, but had not ended, before 
commencement of the rep01ting guidelines (item 47(1) of the RAOCP Act). 

Outline of obligations 

The accounting, auditing and repmting obligations are to:-

• keep proper.fi.nmzcittl recortls (s252 and Reg \58) 
• prepare a general purpose financial report in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standartls as well as the 

reporting guidelines issued by the Industrial Registrar under s255 after the end of each financial year (s253) 
• prepare an operating report after the end of each financial year (s254 and Reg \59) 
• ensure that an approved auditor audits the financial report of the reporting unit for each financial year and makes a 

report in accordance with the Australian Auditing Stant/artis in relation to the year to the reporting unit (s256 and 
s257 and Reg 4) 

• provide free of charge to its members a full report comprising the auditor's repmt, the general purpose financial report 
and the operating report or a concise report for the financial year (s265 and Reg 161) 

• present the full report to a general meeting of the members (or in certain cit-cumstances the committee of management) 
of the reporting unit within 6 months after the end of the financial year to which the report relates (s266) 

• lodge the full report and any concise report in the Industrial Registry together with a certificate by the secretary or 
another authorised officer that the documents lodged are copies of the documents provided to members and presented 
to a meeting (s268 and Reg 162) 

• on request make available to a member of the reporting unit or a Registrar acting at the request of a member specified 
prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit (s272 and Reg \66) 

In aclclition, the Commission on application of a member of a reporting unit may make an order authorising the applicant or 
another person on the applicant's behalf to inspect the financial records ofthe reporting unit. 

The Commission must be satisfied that the applicant is acting in good faith and that there are reasonable grounds for suspecting 
a breach of the accounting, auditing or reporting obligations including the reporting guidelines or a rule of the reporting unit 
relating to its finances or financial administration. 

1 



What is a financial year of an organisation? 

A tinancial year, in relation to an organisation, is the period of 12 months commencing on l July in any year or another period 
of 12 months as is provided in the rules of the organisation (s6). In limited circumstances, a ·financial year of an organisation 
can be a period other than 12 months, that is where the tules of an organisation change its financial yem· (s240). 

What is a reporting unit? 

Section 242 provides that a reporting unit may be the whole of an organisation m· a part of an organisation. 

Clarification as to the members, employees, rules, financial affairs and records, conduct and nctivities, and the journal of a 
reporting unit is provided in s244. 

Organisation not divided into branches 

Where an organisation is not divided into branches, the reporting unit is the whole of the organisation. 

Organisation divided into branches 

Where an organisation!§. divided into branches:-

• each branch will be a reporting unit unless the Industrial Registrar has determined under s245 a division of the 
organisation into repmting units on an alternative basis 

• reporting units that may be established under s245 on an alternative basis include: 
o the who \e of the organisation, or 
o a combination of2 or more branches, 

provided that each branch must be in one, and only one, reporting unit 

• any part of the organisation that is not otherwise included in a branch is taken to be a separate branch (this would 
include fat· example the federal body of the organisation) 

Determination of reporting units - application by organisation 

An organisation divided into branches may make an application under section 246 to the Industrial Registrar to determine the 
reporting units of the organisation on an alternative basis so that the accounting, auditing and reporting obligations do not apply 
individually to each branch though each branch must be in one, and only one, reporting unit (ss242(4)). 

Regulation I 53 sets out the requirements for the application including provision of: 

• a copy of the resolutions in favour of the proposed division into reporting units made by the respective committees of 
management of the organisation and the branches affected; and 

• a statement of reasons in support of the proposed division into reporting units. 

The application must be accompanied by an application for the Industrial Registrar to certify such alterations to the rules of the 
organisation as are required to give effect to the establishment of the proposed reporting units. 

The Industrial Registrar must approve the proposed division into repmting units if the Registrar is satisfied amongst other 
things that the level of financial information that would be available to members under the proposed division would be adequate 
and would be relevant to them. 

An alternative division into repmting units approved by the Industrial Registrar would apply in relation to the first financial 
year starting after the certificate is issued and each subsequent financial year unless before the start of the financial year the 
certiticate is revoked (see section 249 and Regs 155, 156 and 157). 
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Exemption of certain t·eporting units 

If on application of a repotting unit under section 271 a Registrar is satisfied that a reporting unit does not have any financial 
a~Tairs in a tinancial year the reporting unit may be exempted from the accounting, auditing and reporting requirements for that 
ye.:tr. 

The application must be made to a Registrar within 90 days, or such longer period as the Registrar allows, after the end of the 
tinancial year. The Registrar must consider whether the reporting unit itself or another reporting unit of the organisation or any 
person or body corporate or trust expends economic resources or incurs financial obligations so that the reporting unit may 
conduct its activities (Reg 165). 

Rcdu.ced reporting requirements for particular reporting units 

Reporting units with substantial common membership with State registered bodies 

Section 269 applies to a reporting unit where there is an associated State body which:-

(a) is registered or recognised under industrial relations legislation of the States of New South Wales, Queensland, South 
Australia, Western Australia or Tasmania (Reg 163); 

(b) hns substantinlly the same members; and 

(c) has officers who are substantially the same as officers of the reporting unit responsible for undettaking fi.mctions to enable 
accounting, auditing and reporting obligations to be met 

The reporting unit is taken to have satisfied its accounting, auditing and reporting obligations in relation to a financial year if 
section 269 applies to the reporting unit and: 

(a) a Registrar, on application of the repmting unit, issues a certificate stating that the financial affairs of the reporting unit are 
encompassed by those of the associated State body; 

(b) the associated State body has complied with similar obligations under State legislation; 

(c) the reporting unit has lodged a copy of the audited accounts of the associated State body with the Industrial Registry; 

(d) any members of the reporting unit not also members of the associated State body have been provided with copies of the 
audited accounts of the associated State body at about the same time as its members; and 

(e) members of the reporting unit have been provided with an operating report for the reporting unit together with the copies of 
the audited accounts of the associated State body. 

Organisations with income not exceeding $100,000 

A reporting unit that is the whole of an organisation may make an application after the end of a financial year for a cettificate 
that its income for the year did not exceed$ t 00,000. Where a Registrar issues such a certiticate reduced rep Otting requirements 
apply to the reporting unit for that financial year. Unless reduced as discussed below, aH accounting, auditing and reporting 
obligations apply in full to the reporting unit. 

• The general purpose financial report is required to be prepared within 4 months of the end of the financial year and 
with form and content as required by the reporting guidelines issued by the lndusn·ial Registrar for purposes of section 
'270. There is no statutory requirement to prepare this repmt in accmdance with Australian Accounting Standards 
(ss270(4) and Reg 164). 

• The obi igation to provide free of charge to its members a copy of the auditor's report and the general purpose financial 
report is limited to a member who has made such a request. The copies must be provided to the member within 14 
cloys after receiving the request (ss270(6)). 
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• The timet1·ame within which to present the auditor's report and the general purpose ~inancial report to a general 
meeting ofthe members of the reporting unit is extended to the end of the financial year immediately following the 
year to which those reports relate (s270(5)). 

• The timeframe within which to lodge with the Registrar copies of the auditor's report and the general purpose financial 
report is 90 days (or such longer period as a Registrar allows) after the auditor makes a t·eport to the t-epotting unit 
under section 257. The copies should be accompanied by a certificate by the sect-etmy or another officer authodsed by 
the rules of the reporting unit that the information contained in the general purpose tinancia\ report is correct (ss270(7) 
and Reg \64(2)). 

This material has been prepared by the Australian Industrial Registry as a general guide to the Workplace Relations (Registration and Accountability of 

Organisations) legislation. This material should not be treated as advice on the circumstances of any particular case. This material does not have any legal 

status; the relevant law is set out in Schedule 1 B to the Workplace Relations Act 1996 (the RAO Schedule). the RAO Schedule Regulations, the reporting 

guidelines of the Industrial Registrar issued under s255 of the RAO Schedule and the Workplace Relations Legislation Amendment (Registration and 

Accountability of Organisations) (Consequential Provisions) Act 2002. 
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Fact Sheet No. 07/2003 7 May 2003, Australian Industrial Registry 

Registration and Accountability of Organisations Legislation Fact Sheet 

Information Needs of Members 

The Registration and Accountability of Organisations Schedule (Schedule lB to the Workplace 
Relations Act /996) [the RAO Schedule]. generally comes into operation on 12 May 2003. The RAO 
Schedule contains most of the matters previously dealt with in the body of the Workplace Relations Act 
/996 [the Act], which relate to the registration and functioning of organisations of employers and 
employees under the Act. The Workplace Relations Legislation Amendment (Registration and 
Accountability of Organisations) (Consequential Provisions) Act 2002[the RAOCP Act[, deals with 
various transitional provisions arising from the introduction of the Schedule. 

What are the information needs of members? 

Members of organisations need information to enable them to gauge the performance of the committee 
of management and other holders of office in relation to the financial management of the reporting unit 
having in mind the nature of registered organisations. 

Generally organisations are mutual, not-for-profit entitiesL which are exempt from income tax. They 
provide services to their members in line with their objects and the purposes of registration as 
organisations under the RAO Schedule. Organisations are dependent on the continued support of their 
members to provide economic resources through periodic subscriptions and levies so as to conduct 
their activities. The motives of members who provide these resources are different to the owners of 
business enterprises. So too are the information needs of members different. 

The members of organisations need information so as to gauge: 

• whether the economic resources provided by them were used by the committee of 
management and other holders of office in the manner and for the purposes for which they 
were provided; 

• the level of resources expended in relation to the provision of various services to members; 
• any restrictions and limitations on the employment of resources that will affect the ability of 

organisations to achieve objectives; and 
• whether the organisations have the ability to meet financial commitments as they fall due and 

therefore the ability to continue to provide services to members. 

How are the information needs of members to be met? 

The RAO Schedule requires that each reporting unit' of an organisation must keep proper financial 
records (s252), and after each financial year of the organisation the reporting unit must: 

• prepare a genaal purpose financial report, in accordance with the Australian Accounting 
Sllm<itmls, from the financial records it has kept for the year (s253); 

• have the general purpose financial report audited by an independent and appropriately 
qualified person who must make an ttutlitor's report which provides certain information 
including the auditor's professional opinion on the fairness of presentation of the tinancinl 
report (s257); 

• prepare an operating report (s254); 
• provide free of charge to members either a full report whlch comprises the 3 reports 

mentioned above or a concise report drawn up in accordance with Reg 161 (s265); 
• present the full report to a general meeting of the members, or instead to a committee of 

management meeting subject to the rules of the reporting unit providing for a specified 
percentage (not exceeding 5%) of members to call a general meeting for the purpose of 
considering the full report (s266) 



• on application, make cettain additional financial information available to a member or a 
Registrar on behalf of a member (s272 and Reg 166). 

These obligations apply generally unless the reporting unit is exempted for the year because it had no 
tinancial affairs (s271). Also, reduced requirements may apply to a reporting unit: 

• with substantial common membership with a State registered body (s269), or 
• which is the whole of the organisation and has income not exceeding $100,000 (s270). 

What m·e proper financial records? 

Each reporting unit is required to keep proper financial records with respect to its transactions and 
financial position and in such a manner as will enable (s252(l)): 

• a general purpose financial report to be prepared from them under section 253; and 
• the accounts to be conveniently and properly audited. 

To the extent that they relate to finances or financial administration, financial records includes a 
register, other record of information, financial reports or financial records however compiled, recorded 
or stored, and documents (s6). The financial records would include a ledger organising entries 
regarding its transactions into proper accounts so as to enable: 

• disclosure in the general purpose financial repmt of all items required by the Australian 
Accounting Standards; 

• disclosure in the general purpose financial report of all items required by the reporting 
guidelines of the Industrial Registrar; and 

• ready retrieval of the information additional to that in the general purpose financial report to 
be provided to members or a Registrar on application (s272 and Reg 166). 

Where an organisation consists of more than one reporting unit, records of the units must be kept in a 
consistent manner (for example the adoption of consistent accounting policies and a common chart of 
accounts), to the extent that this is practicable (s252(2)). 

Records may be retained on a cash or accrual basis (s252(3)). 

Membership records may be kept on a cash basis, even if other records are retained on an accrual basis 
(s252(4)). 

Records must be retained for 7 years from the date of the transaction to which they relate (s252(5)). 

What is a General Purpose Financial Report? 

The general purpose financial report comprises several components including (s253): 

I. financial statements including a profit and loss statement (or statement of financial perf01mance), a 
balance sheet (or statement of financial position), and a statement of cash flows; 

2. notes to the financial statements (containing disclosures required by the Australian Accounting 
Standards as well as the reporting guidelines of the Industrial Registrar); and 

3. a committee of management statement (required by the reporting guidelines of the Industrial 
Registrar). 

Where a reporting unit obtains a certificate from a Registrar that it is the whole of the organisation and 
has income not exceeding $100,000 for a particular financial year, the reporting unit is: 



• required to prepare the general purpose financial report in compliance with the form and 
content specifted in the reporting guidelines of the Industrial Registrar tOr purposes of section 
270 (para 255(3)(b)); 

• required by the s270 reporting guidelines to include the operating report (s254); and 
• uot required to prepare a statement of cash flows (see s270 reporting guidelines). 

Australian Accounting Standards apply 

The general purpose financial report required under section 253 must be prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards. These are the accounting standards issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) or issued by CPA Australia and by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in Australia and adopted by the AASB as in force, or applicable, ti·om time to time (s6). 

Standards and background material can be downloaded from the AASB website- W\'\-"W.aasb.com.au. 

The Industrial Registrar has a discretion to exempt an organisation or a class of organisations from all 
or part of the requirements of a particular Australian Accounting Standard (s241 and Reg \52). In 
determining whether to grant an exemption, the Registrar must have regard to: 

• the cost of compliance with the standard; and 
• the information needs of members. 

While there is no legislated requirement to comply with the Australian Accounting Standards in the 
preparation of a general purpose financial report under section 270, it should be noted that: 

• the financial records are required to be kept in a manner as will enable disclosure in the 
general purpose financial report of all items required by the Australian Accounting Standards 
(paragraph 252(1)(b)); and 

• an approved auditor (s6 and Reg 4) is bound by rules of his or her professional accountancy 
body to report on any non-camp liance with Australian Accounting Standards. 

The Registry considers that the following Australian Accounting Standards have most relevance for all 
reporting units to which section 270 applies: 

• AASB1031/AAS5: Materiality; 
• AASB1001/AAS6: Accounting Policies; 
• AASB 1018: Statement of Financial Performance; 
• AASB I 040/ AAS36: Statement of Financial Position; and 
• AASB I 034/AAS37: Financial Report Presentation and Disclosures. 

Reporting Guidelines issued by Industrial Registrar 

The Industrial Registrar must publish in the Gazette reporting guidelines for the purposes of sections 
253 and 270. 

The reporting guidelines are directed towards meeting the information needs of members in line with 
the discussion above. Also, where an organisation has 2 or more reporting units the reporting 
guidelines seek to improve the quality of information available to users of the general purpose financial 
report about the reporting unit's economic support of, or economic dependency on, other reporting units 
of the organisation. 

The reporting guidelines require: 

• certain disclosures in relation to revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities of the reporting unit 
in addition to t/wse prescribed by Australimr Accounting Stmulartl\·; and 



• the Australian Accounting Standards must prevail in the event of any conflict with the 
reporting guidelines unless the Industrial Registrar has determined undet· section 24 I that the 
Standard or a relevant part does not apply in relation to the organisation concerned. 

The additional disclosure requirements are mainly based on the provisions of former Regulation I 07 of 
the Workplace Relations Regulations though there some new requil'ements relating to: 

• expenses incurred as consideration for employers making payroll deductions of membership 
subscriptions (s255(2)(a)); 

• legal costs and other expenses related to litigation or other legal matters (s255(2)(b))-; and 
• receivables or other rights to receive cash, or payables or other financial liabilities in 

connection with another reporting unit of the organisation- it is necessary to show the name 
and amount for each other reporting unit involved. 

Where the reporting guidelines require additional disclosure of an item of expense only transactions 
that are directly associated with the expense description should be aggregated for this purpose. It is not 
necessary to apportion indirect expenses. For example, legal costs and other expenses related to 
I itigation or other legal matters would include costs for services provided by external legal practitioners 
or firms, application fees and other charges by courts etc. It is not necessary to apportion employee 
costs or other general administrative expenses of the reporting unit. 

The reporting guidelines also require preparation of a committee of management statement which is a 
different statement to the operating report required under section 254 and is mainly based on the 
directors' declaration required under section 295 of the Corporations Act 2001. 

The committee of management statement must contain declarations in relation to: 

• the validity of the financial statements and notes; 
• the viability of the reporting unit; and 

proper management of the financial affairs of the reporting unit in accordance with its rules. 

What is a concise report? 

A concise report for the financial year may only be provided to members instead of the full report if 
under the rules of the reporting unit the committee of management resolves to do so. The concise report 
consists of (para 265(3)(a)): 

• a concise financial report including (Reg 161): 
o the 3 financial statements as in the full report except that the notes may be omitted; 

and 
o disclosures of information for the preceding financial year; and 
o discussion and analysis of the principal factors affecting the financial performance, 

financial position and financial and investing activities of the reporting unit to assist 
the understanding of members; and 

o the committee of management statement required by the reporting guidelines; and 
o a statement that the concise financial repmt has been derived from the full report and 

cannot be expected to provide as full as understanding of the financial performance, 
financial position and financial and investing activities of the reporting unit as the full 
report; and 

o the notice drawing attention to the additional information that must be made available 
to a member or a Registrar on behalf of a member on application; and 

o any other information consistent with the full repott; and 
• the operating report for the year; 
• a statement by the auditor that the concise financial report has been audited and whetl1er in the 

auditor's opinion it complies with the relevant Australian Accounting Standards; 
• in relation to the auditor's report on the full repmt, the following: 



o whether in the auditor's opinion the general purpose financial report is presented 
fairly in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the reporting guidelines, 
or any other requirements of Chapter 8, Part 3 of the RAO Schedule; and 

o description of the effect (quantified if practicable) of any non-compliance; and 
o description of any defect or irregularity in the general purpose tinancial report; and 

• description of any deficiency, failure or shortcoming in respect of: 
o the auditor's entitlement to full and free access to the financial records and 

information and explanations sought for purposes of the audit (s257(2)); and 
o the obligations of the reporting unit for keeping proper financial records (s252); and 

• a statement that the report is a concise report and that a copy of the full report and auditor's 
rep01t will be sent to the member free of charge if the member asks for them. 

Opemting Report 

The committee of management or an officer of the reporting unit responsible (whether alone or with 
others) under its rules for undertaking the functions necessary to comply with the accounting, auditing 
and reporting requirements must prepare an operating report for the financial year (s254(\) and (3)). 

The operating report must contain details as follows (s254(2) and Reg 159): 

• a review of the repmting unit's principal activities during the year, the results of those 
activities and any significant changes in the nature of those activities during the year; 

• any significant changes in the reporting unit's financial affairs during the year; 
• the right of members to resign from the repotting unit under s174; 
• any officer or member who is a trustee of a superannuation entity or an exempt public sector 

superannuation scheme or a director of a company that is a trustee of such an entity or scheme 
and where a criterion for the officer or member holding such a position is being an officer or 
member of a registered organisation; 

• any other information considered relevant; 
• the number of members at the end of the financial year recorded in the register of members 

and taken to be members of the reporting unit; 
• the number of employees of the reporting unit at the end of the financial year measured on a 

full-time equivalent basis; and 
• the name of each person who has been a member of the committee of management at any time 

during the financial year and the period for which he or she held the position. 

Additional information to be provided to members or Registrar 

A reporting unit must provide on the application of a member or a Registrar at the request of a member 
specified prescribed information in relation to the repot1ing unit. The information is to be made 
available to the applicant within the period specified in the application which must not be less than 14 
days after the application is given to the reporting unit (s272(1), (2), (3) and (4)). 

The application to a reporting unit of an organisation must be made in wtiting addressed to the 
secretary or any other executive officer of the organisation and delivered by hand at, or sent by prepaid 
post to, the office of the organisation. 

The information that may be sought under section 272 is prescribed in Regulation 166 and relates only 
to the last tinancial year in respect of which an auditor's report was made. 

This material has been prepared by the Australian Industrial Registry as a general guide to the Workplace Relations 

(Registration and Accountability of Organisations) legislation. This material should not be treated as advice on the 

circumstances of any particular case. This material does not have any legal status; the relevant taw is set out in Schedule 1 B 

to the Workplace Relations Act 1996 (the RAO Schedule), the RAO Schedule Regulations, the reporting guidelines of the 

Industrial Registrar issued under s255 of the RAO Schedule and the Workplace Relations Legislation Amendment 

(Registration and Accountability of Organisations) (Consequential Provisions) Act 2002. 



1 the ol~jective uf general purpose financial reporting by not-tOr-protit entities is discussed in Chapter 3 of the CPA Australia Policy Paper 

l;"iuam:ial Rr.:porriug by Nor:(or-Pro.fit £mities (see 

http://www .CfHlaustralia.com.au/0 l_infonnation _centre/13 _ext_ rcport/1_13 _n _ 0 _t'xt_ n~p.asp) 

2 sc.: s242 tOr the meaning of a reporting unit- this meaning is discussed in the Registl)•'s FACT Sheet llccounring, Auditing and 

l?t'florriug Ohligaticm.'i (see http://www .a irc.gov .au/fact_ sheets/06 _fact_ sheet.h trn) 



Fact Sheet No. 08/2003 7 May 2003, Australian Industrial Registry 

Registration and Accountability of Organisations Legislation Fact Sheet 

Financial Reporting Process and Time-limits 

The Registration and Accountability of Organisations Schedule (Schedule lB to the Workplace Relations Act 1996) (the RAO 
Schedule!, generally comes into operation on 12 May 2003. The RAO Schedule contains most of the matters previously dealt with in 
the body of the Workplace Relations Act /996 [the Act], which relate to the registration and functioning of organisations of employers 
and employees under the Act. The Workplace Relations Legislation Amendment {Registration and Accountability qfOrganisations) 
(C 'onsequenthrl Provision:,~ Act 2002jtlte RAOCP Actj, deals with various transitional provisions arising from the introduction of the 
Schedule. 

Steps in the Financial Reporting Process 

The financial reports ofa reporting unit must be prepared, audited, provided to members, presented to a meeting and lodged in the 
Industrial Registry within certain time-limits as set out in the RAO Schedule. These requirements are discussed below. The meaning 
of "reporting unit" is provided by section 242 and discussed in Registry Fact Sheet No. 06/2003 Accounting, Auditing and 
Reporting Obligations at http://vo!\'~-·w.airc.gov.au/f.act_shects/06_fact_sheet.htm. 

Prcpar:1tion of reports 

I. A general purpose financial report ('GPFR')- that includes a committee of management statement- and an operating report 

('OPR') must be prepared "as soon as practicable after the end of each financial year" [s253( I), s254( I)]. 

The lime-limit "as soon as practicable" is constrained by the time-limit/or subsequent steps in the.financialreporting 
process particularly the requirement to present both reports together with an auditor's report to a meeting within 6 months 
afier the end qf"the financial year [s266]. 

2. Preparation of a committee of management statement is required by the reporting guidelines issued by the Industrial Registrar under 

section 255 and must contain the declarations set out in those guidelines. The statement must be made in accordance with a resolution 

of the committee of management. 

3. lfthe committee wishes to provide members with a copy of a concise report rather than of the full repmt it must pass a resolution to 

that effect [s265(2)]. 

4. The Registry refers to a meeting at which the resolutions referred to in 2 and 3 above are passed as the first meeting or the 

preparation meeting. 

5. A statement showing the particulars of any loan, grant or donation of an amount exceeding $1,000 must be prepared in time for it to 

be lodged in the Registry within 90 days after the end ofthe financial year [s237(1)]. 

Audit of financial report 

6. An auditor's report must be prepared, signed and given to the reporting unit within a reasonable time of the auditor having received 
the GPFR. The auditor's report must be dated as at the date on which the auditor signs it [s257(9)]. 

The time-limit "within a reasonable time" is constrained by the time-limit for subsequent steps in the .financial reporting 
JWocess particularly the requirement to present the reports together with an auditor's report to a meeting within 6 months 
r(jier the end of the .financial year [s266}. 

Provision of reports to members and presentation to general meeting of members 

7. The reporting unit must provide free of charge to its members copies of the GPFR, the OPR and the Auditor's report (the full 

report) or (where the committee of management has resolved under the rules of the reporting unit to do so) a concise report [s265(1), 

(2). (3) and Reg 161]. 

8. The copies must be provided to the members of the reporting unit at least 21 days before presentation of the full report to a general 

meeting at· the members [s265(5)(a)]. 



9. The reporting unit can meet its obligation to provide copies of the full or concise report to members by publishing the report in a 

journal that is available to the members free of charge [s265(6)].ln the view of the Registry a reporting unit may meet this obligation 

in whole or in part by publication of the rep01t in a journal published on a web site on the Internet dependent on: 

a. the extent of the accessibility of the members of the reporting unit to the Internet (see also Reg 18); and 

b. that the members are notified by the reporting unit in the usual manner in which it communicates with its members that the report 

has been so published at a specified Internet address. 

l 0. The full report must be presented to a general meeting of members within 6 months after the end of the financial year [s266(1 )]. 

The Registty refers to this meeting as the second meeting or the pl"esentation meeting. 

11. Reporting units with membership widely dispersed should note that if the rules of the reporting unit permit a general meeting to be 

n series of meetings at different locations, the presenting of the full report to such a series of meetings will suffice [s266(2)]. 

12. A reporting unit may apply to the Registrar to have the 6 months time-limit for convening the general meeting of members 

extended by one month [s266( I) and s265(5)]. This has the dual effect of extending the time-limit for provision of documents to 

members by one month [s265(5)]. 

Provision of reports to membe1·s and presentation to a committee of management meeting 

\3. The full report may be presented to a meeting of the committee of management instead of a general meeting of members if the 

rules provide that a general meeting of members can be called by 5% or less of members for the purpose of considering the full report 

[s266(3)]. The Registry also refers to this meeting as the second meeting or the pl"esentation meeting. 

14. Where the full report is to be presented to a committee of management meeting, the reporting unit must provide free of charge to 

its members copies of the full report or the concise report to the members of the reporting unit within 5 months after the end of the 

financial year [s265(5)(b)]. A Registrar may extend this time-limit by no more than one month [s265(5)]. 

15. The reporting unit can meet its obligation to provide copies of the full or concise report to members by publishing the report in the 

same manner discussed at 9 above. 

16. The committee of management meeting must also be held within 6 months after the end of the financial year [s266(3)]. There is no 

provision for extending the time-limit for holding this form of meeting. 

Lodgment of documents in Registry 

17. A statement showing the relevant particulars of any loan, grant or donation of an amount exceeding $1,000 must be lodged in the 

Registry within 90 days after the end of the financial year. Such a statement is not a public document but may be inspected at any 

registt·y, during office hours, by a member of the organisation or branch concerned [s237( 4) and Reg 20( I)]. 

1 S. The following documents must be lodged in the Registry within 14 days after the presentation meeting [s268]: 

a. a copy of the full repott; 

b. a copy of any concise report provided to the members; and 

c. a certificate by the secretary or other officer of the reporting unit authorised by the rules of the reporting unit fm the purpose that the 
documents lodged are copies of the documents provided to members and presented to the presentation meeting. 

The certificate should indicate the date on which the documents were provided to the membe1:\· as well as the nature and date 
qj" the presentation meeting. 

This material has been prepared by the Australian Industrial Registry as a general guide to the Workplace Relations (Registration and Accountability of 
Organisations) legislation. This material should not be treated as advice on the circumstances of any particular case. This material does not have any legal status; the 
relevant law is set out in Schedule 18 to the Workplace Relations Act 1996 (the RAO Schedule), the RAO Schedule Regulations, the reporting guidelines of the 
Industrial Registrar issued under s255 of the RAO Schedule and the Workplace Relations legislation Amendment (Registration and Accountability of Organisations) 
(Consequential Provisions) Act 2002. 

2 



Fact Sheet No. 09/2003 7 May 2003, Australian Industrial Registry 

Registration and Accountability of Organisations Legislation Fact Sheet 

Diagrammatic Summary of Financial Reporting Process and 
Time-Limits 

Reporting Unit must keep proper financial 
records - s252 

Steps I to 4: Prepare General Pmpose 
Financial Report, (incl. Committee of 

As soon as prac 
afier end of:fina 
year 

ticable Management (COM) Statement in First itt/e eting 
ncial accordance with COM resolution) and 

Operating Report- s253(l), s254(1) 

I 
0 days Lodge within 9 

ajier the end of 
.financial year 

Steps 5 and I7: Prepare and 
·rhe 

lodge in Industrial Registry 
Statement of Loans, Grants 
and Donations- s237 

Step 6: Auditor to prepare 
Within a reasm wble time Auditor's Report and give to 

Presentation to 
COM Meeting 

Within 5 
months of 
end of 
.financial year 

Within 6 
months of 
end of" 
financial year 

Wirhin 14 days 
meeting 

Reporting Unit- s257 

\ ~j~ 
to rules 

Steps I4 and I5: 
Provide copies of all Steps 7 to 9, 12: Provide 
reports or a concise copies of all reports or a 
report to members (if concise report to members 
presenting to a COM 21 days before a general 
Meeting)- s265(5)(b) meeting- s265(5)(a) 

Steps 13 and I6: Present Steps I 0 to 12: Present 
all reports to COM all reports to a General 
Meeting - s266(3) Meeting of Members -

s266(1 ), (2) 

I 
of" 

Step IS: Lodge copies of all reports (incl. 
any concise report) in Industrial Registry 
together with certificate by secretary or other 
officer authorised by rules to do so - s268 

Presentation to 
General Meeting 
of Members 

s 
11< 

econd 
1eeting 

NOTE: The references to steps relate to the narrative description of the Financial Reporting Process and Time­
Limits in Registry FACT Sheet No. 08/2003- http:l/www.airc.qov.au/fact sheets/08 fact sheet.htm 



Fact Sheet No. 10/2003 7 May 2003, Australian Industrial Registry 

Registration and Accountability of Organisations Legislation Fact Sheet 

Auditors 

Tl1e Registration and Accountability of Organisations Schedule (Schedule IB to the Workplace Relations Act 1996) jtlte RAO 
Schedule!, generally comes into operation on 12 May 2003. The RAO Schedule contains most of the matters previously dealt 
with in the body of the Workplace Relations Act 1996 [the Act], which related to the registration and functioning of 
organisations of employers and employees under the Act. The Workplace Relations Legislation Amendment (Registration and 
Accountability of Organisations) (Consequential Provisions) Act 2002jthe RAOCP Act!, deals with various transitional 
provisions arising from the introduction of the RAO Schedule. 

Application 

Division 4 of Chapter 8, Part 3 of the RAO Schedule makes provision in respect of the requirement to have an auditor (s256(!)) 
for each reporting unit of an organisation in relation to a financial year of the organisation that commences on or after 
commencement of the reporting guidelines (item 47(1) ofRAOCP Act). The meaning of 11reporting unit" is provided by section 
242 and discussed in Registry Fact Sheet No. 06/2003 Accounting, Auditing and Reporting Obligations at 
http://www .a ire. gov .au/fact_ sh eets/06 _fact_ sheet.htm. 

The corresponding obligations set out in Part IX, Division II of the Workplace Relations Act /996 continue to apply to an 
organisation or a branch of an organisation in relation to a financial year that had started, but had not ended, before 
commencement of the repmting guidelines (item 47(1) of the RAOCP Act). 

Who may hold the position of an auditor? 

The position of auditor of a reporting unit is to be held by: 

• a person who is an approved auditor; or 
• a firm, at least one of whom is an approved auditor. 

An approved auditor is a person who is a member of CPA Australia, the National Institute of Chartered Accountants in 
Australia or the National Institute of Accountants and holds a current Public Practice Certificate (Reg 4). 

In relation to a reporting unit that has been issued with a certificate under subsection 270(1) ofthe RAO Schedule, a person 
who is a member of the above bodies but does not hold a current Public Practice Certificate may be approved by the Industrial 
Registrar. 

Who may accept appointment as an auditor? 

A person must not accept (nor retain) appointment as auditor unless: 

• the person is an approved auditor; and 
• the person is not an excluded auditor in relation to the reporting unit 

A member of a firm must not accept (nor retain) appointment of the fitm as auditor of a reporting unit unless: 

• at least one member of the firm is an approved auditor; and 
• no member of the firm is an excluded auditor in relation to the reporting unit. 

An excluded auditor is a person who is: 

• an officer or employee of the reporting unit or the organistion of which the reporting unit is a part, or 
• a pmtner, employer or employee of such an officer or employee, or 
• a liquidator in respect of property of the reporting unit or the organisation of which the reporting unit is a part, or 

I 



····-' • n person who owes more than $5000 to the reporting unit or the organisation of which the reporting unit is a part. 

Powers and duties of auditors 

An auditor is entitled: 

• to full and tl·ee access to all records and other documents of the reporting unit relating directly or indirectly tot he 
receipt or payment of money, or to the acquisition, receipt, custody or disposal of assets, the the reporting unit and 

• to seek from any desiganted officer, or employee of the reporting unit, such information and explanations as the 
auditor or authorised person wants for the purposes of the audit. 

An auditor must, in his or her report, 

• state whether in the auditor's opinion the general purpose financial report is presented fairly in accordance with any of 
the tbllowing that apply in relation to the reporting unit: 

(11) the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) any other requirements imposed by this Part. 

If not of that opinion, the auditor's report must say why. 

• If the auditor is of the opinion that the general purpose financial report does not so comply, to the extent it is 
practicable to do so, quantify the effect that non-compliance has on the general purpose financial report. [fit is not 
practicable to quantify the effect fully, the report must say why. 

• describe any defect or irregularity in the general purpose financial report; and any deficiency, failure or shortcoming in 
respect of the matters referred to in subsection (2) or section 252. 

The tbrm and content of the auditor's report must be in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards. 

Notices of meeting of the reporting unit. 

An auditor must receive any notice of, and any other communication relating to, a meeting of the reporting unit, or the 
committee of management of the reporting unit, at which the report of the auditor, or any general purpose financi'al report to 
which the report relates, are to be presented. 

An auditor is entitled to attend, and be heard at, any part of a meeting of a reporting unit, or the committee of management of a 
reporting unit, at which: 

• the report of the auditor, or any general purpose financial report to which the report relates, is to be presented or 
considered; or 

• there is to be conducted any business of the meeting that relates to the auditor. 

Auditors to enjoy qualified privilege 

An auditor is not, in the absence of malice, liable to an action for defamation at the suit of a person in relation to a statement 
that the auditor makes in the course of duties as auditor, whether the statement is made orally or in writing. 

Fees and expenses of Auditors 

A reporting unit must pay the reasonable fees and expenses of an auditor of the reporting unit. 

·rhis material has heen prepared by the Australian Industrial Registry as a general guide to the Workplace Relations (Registration and Accountability of 

Organisations} legislation. This material should not be treated as advice on the circumstances of any particular case. This material does not have any legal 

status; the relevant law is set out in Schedule I B to the Workplace Relations Act 1996 (the RAO Schedule), the RAO Schedule Regulations, the reporting 

g.uidclincs of the Industrial Registrar issued under s255 of the RAO Schedule and the Workplace Relations Legislation Amendment (Registration and 

1\ccountnbilily of Organisations) (Consequential Provisions) Act 2002. 
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Australian Government 

Australian Industrial Registry 

Mr Norman J Hoare 
Morris & Batzloff 
Chatered Accountants 
Level 1/96 Lytton Road 
EAST BRISBANE QLD 4169 

Dear Mr Hoare 

Level B, Terrace Towers 
80 William Street, East Sydney, NSW 2011 

Telephone: (02) 8374 6666 
Fax: (02) 9380 6990 

Re: Audit of the Financial Accounts for the CEPU Plumbing Division, Queensland 
Divisional Branch 

At the request of your client, the CEPU Plumbing Division, Queensland Divisional Branch, I 
enclose copies of information outlining the new financial reporting obligations of registered 
organisations. This information may assist you in the preparation of the report on its financial 
affairs for the year ending 31 March 2005. 

If you have any queries regarding this information, please contact me on 02 837 4 6666. 

Yours sincerely, 

Peter McKerrow 
for Deputy Industrial Registrar 

29 September 2004 


